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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANGE

Situated in the heart of an ever-renewing downtown Norfolk, St. Paul's
Church stands as a physical reminder of the historic roots of this
modern-appearing city. Sheltered beneath the large trees of its
picturesque churchyard, the old brick walls form a classic example of
Virginia colonial ecclesiastical architecture. Similar in outline to
such notable churches as Bruton Parish, St. John's Hampton, and Mattaponi,
King and Queen County, St., Paul's is built in the form of a Latin cross
with unpedimented gable ends. The walls, laid Flemish bond with glazed
headers above a beveled water table and English bond below, are the only
remaining portions of the original building; all else was destroyed when
the church burned in 1776. In themselves the walls are fine examples of
colonial craftsmanship, having rubbed brick dressings around all of

the tall semi-circular arched windows, around the large circular windows

in the transepts, and at all the corners of the building. (The circular wipdow

in the west wall is a later insertion.} A most distinctive feature is
the projection bricks in the south transept that form the large inscription
"1739 S B", These projecting bricks are glazed but have been painted over.

wr
m

The walls have been repaired and repointed in various places, but on the whp1d"

they are in relatively good condition., The church's three doorways
originally had brick pediments, but those in the transepts are now covered
over by handsome frame vestibules, while the west doorway has been
incorporated in a recently added brick vestibule. Other later additions
include a small brick vestry in the northeast corner and a three-story
brick bell tower connected to the west front by the brick vestibule
previously mentioned. Built in 1901, the tower has brickwork and window
detail copied from the church. The church s handsome and dignified
Georgian-style -interior with-its high pews dates from 1913; and though
obv1ously a product of its tlme, it is a very creditable design.

In the churchyard there are numerous eighteenth and nineteenth century
gravestones and a few seventeenth century ones,many of which show the
damaging effects of Norfolk's atmosphere. Also located in the yard is a
two-and-half story Georgian-style parish house .containing an interesting
small museum. Much of the brick wall surrounding the yard dates from
1759.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Veneraﬁle St. Paul’s Church, the third church of Elizabeth River Parish,
was constructed in 1739 with materials believed to have been the gift
of Samuel Boush, the first mayor of the Borough of Norfolk. The
projecting bricks in the south gable ‘that form the inscription "1739 S B"
are thought to support this. It is said that the present church is built
on the site of the 1641 chapel of ease of the old Lower Norfolk Parish;
and indeed, the churchyard has served as a burial place from that time,

had been created a borough by Royal Charter in 1736. 1In 1776, when Lord
Dunmore's fleet bombarded the town, the church was struck by a cannonball
which nearly seventy-five years later was dug up near the base of the
building and restecred to its former point of contact, where it has become
an item of interest to visitors. Shortly after the British bombardment,
American forces gutted the church along with the rest of the town. The
church stood in ruin until 1786 when it was restored w1th funds obtained
by a lottery authorized by an’act of’ the ‘Géneral Assedbly. 'The chutch
served its congregation again until 1803, when internal strife caused the
congregation to abandon the building to the Baptists. In 1827, it was

reoccupied by Episcopalians from Christ Church and in 1832, the church
received its own new congregatlon "as well as "its present ‘rate.* During

the Civil War St. Paul's was used as a chapel by Federal forces. In 1913,
the church was thoroughly renovated and given its present dignifieéd ™’
Georgian style interior.

Although much changed by war, neglect, and later additions, St. Paul's
survives as the oldest building in the city of Norfolk, and the only
Virginia colonial church inscribed with projecting bricks. The church's
original vestry book of 1748-61 is preserved, as are five pieces of its
colonial silver, now on loan to the Norfolk Museum of Arts and Sciences.,
Set in its beautiful old churchyard, St. Paul's stands in relation to its
very changed environs much as described in 1853 by William Forrest:
Like the sturdy old oak of the mountain, that defies the fury of

woodman's axe, as well as the scathing thunderbolts of the God

of Nature, or like the aged pilgrim, who has long survived all the
rest of his generation, and who lingers, almost as a stranger, amid
the changes and desolation around him, this ancicent temple stands
among the silent dead, - the mouldering remains of those who
formerly asscmbled to worship within its coumnsccrated walls and

make their vows at its altar; and it ?olnts gloomily though ngnl-
antly,—ta the men and the ' events o

The church was originally referred to as The Borough Church because Norfolk

the levelling toxnade, and which has escaped the heavy strokes of the

years—that have-gone-by+—-———I
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U.5.6.5. 7' quadrangle (Scale: 1:24000)
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